
 

 
CITY OF DORAL  

PARKS AND POLICE 4 KIDS FOUNDATION 
BOARD MEETING 

 
Tuesday, August 11, 2015 at 12:00 p.m. 

8401 NW 53rd Terrace,  
3rd Floor Council Chambers 

Doral, FL  33166 
 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call of Foundation Members 
 

2. Approval of Minutes from May 20, 2015; June 15, 2015; and July 7, 2015  
 

3. Public Comments  
 

4. Discussion Items  
 

A. Approval of Financial Items:  

a. Approval of compiled Financial Statements for the year ended 
September 30, 2014 (Exhibit A) 
 

b. Approval of Form 990, Return of an Organization Exempt from Income 
Tax, for the year ended September 30, 2014 (Exhibit B) 
 

c. Approval of invoice for the balance due services provided by 
independent accountant  as per engagement letter (Exhibit C) 

 
B. National Night Out & Back to School Night Event Recap 

a. Exhibit D: Budget report 
 

b. Exhibit E: Event Recap 
 

C. US Conference of Mayor’s IPad Acceptance Letter  
a. Exhibit F: letter of acceptance 

 
D. PP4K Gala: status update and possible new event dates 

a. Approved Motion from July 7th meeting: Motion to request staff to 
reach out to the Trump Resort for possibility of cancelling without 
penalty or postponing the PP4K Gala event made by Director 
Cabrera and seconded by Director Ruiz. By consensus, motion passes 
unanimously.  

 
b. Exhibit G: Email RE: dates available from Rebecca Graves, Catering 

Manager Trump National Doral 



  

Page 2 of 2 

 

E. PP4K By-law Revisions 
a. Exhibit H 

 
 

5. Next Meeting Date 
 

6. Adjournment 
Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at 305-593-
6725 or view the agenda packet on the City’s website at www.cityofdoral.com or at City of Doral 
Government Center, 8401 NW 53rd Terrace, Doral, Florida 3366 during regular business hours 
(Monday – Friday, 8:00 A.M. – 4:30 P.M.). Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0105, anyone 
wishing to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered 
at this meeting or hearing shall need a record of the proceedings and, for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

http://www.cityofdoral.com/


 

 
CITY OF DORAL  

PARKS AND POLICE 4 KIDS FOUNDATION 
BOARD MEETING 
FINAL MINUTES 

 
Wednesday, May 20, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 

8401 NW 53rd Terrace, 3rd Floor Council Chambers 
Doral, FL  33166 

 
1. Call to Order / Roll Call of Foundation Members 

 
Meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm 
 
Chairman Luigi Boria      Present  
Director Sandra Ruiz     Present 
Director Pete Cabrera     Present 
Director Christi Fraga     Present  
Director Ana Maria Rodriguez   Not Present 
 
Also present were: 
Weiss, Serota Helfman et.al, City Attorney 
Connie Diaz, City Clerk 

 
2. Approval of Minutes from April 14, 2015 

 
Director Ruiz requested to add a presentation on the “Within Reach Summer Theater”. By consensus, the 
board agreed to add the item. 
 
Motion to approve the minutes from April 14, 2015 made by Director Ruiz and seconded by Director 
Cabrera.  By consensus, motion passes unanimously. 

 
3. Public Comments  

 
4. Discussion Items  

 
(Presentation item added at the request of Director Ruiz) Within Reach Summer Theater 
 

Mr. David Caserta, addressed the Board and presented the program.  
 

A. 2015 Back to School Night Event 
a. Proposed Date: Thursday, August 13, 2015  
b. Approval of Budget not to exceed $7,600 (Exhibit A) 
c. 2014 Event Budget Overview & Recap (Exhibit B & C ) 

 
 



  

 

Barbie Hernandez, Parks and Recreation Director addressed the Board and presented the event. By 
consensus, the Board agreed to change the date to Thursday, August 6, 2015 and include PP4K Logo on 
some of the items / materials given out.  

 
B. Famous Daves- requesting to use PP4K logo and donate funds 

a. Exhibit D 
 
Motion to approve made by Director Fraga and seconded by Director Ruiz. By consensus, motion passes 
unanimously.  
 

C. PGA Funds Update 

By consensus, the Board requested that a full report be circulated with the check received and reconciliation 
of funds. 
 

D. PP4K By-law Revisions 
a. Exhibit E 

 
By consensus, the Board requested to bring the By-laws back with the requested changes.  
 

E. Annual Renewal of Liability Insurance 
a. Exhibit F 

 
Item was approved by consensus. 
 

5. Next Meeting Date June 15, 2015 
 

6. Adjournment  Meeting adjourns at 4:54 pm. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Connie Diaz, City Clerk 
 
Motion to approve the minutes of the May 20, 2015, Parks and Police 4 Kids Meeting made by ___ and 
seconded by _____. 
 
Director Ana Maria Rodriguez      
Director Pete Cabrera     
Director Christi Fraga     
Vice Chair Sandra Ruiz     
Chair Luigi Boria      
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5 day of August, 2015. 
 

__________________ 
        LUIGI BORIA, CHAIR 



 

 
CITY OF DORAL  

PARKS AND POLICE 4 KIDS FOUNDATION 
BOARD MEETING 
FINAL MINUTES 

 
Monday, June 15, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 

8401 NW 53rd Terrace, 3rd Floor Council Chambers 
Doral, FL  33166 

 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call of Foundation Members 
 
Meeting was called to order at 4:18 pm 
 
Chairman Luigi Boria      Present  
Director Sandra Ruiz     Present 
Director Pete Cabrera     Not Present 
Director Christi Fraga     Not Present 
Director Ana Maria Rodriguez   Present  
 
Also present were: 
Weiss, Serota Helfman et.al, City Attorney 
Connie Diaz, City Clerk 

 
2. Approval of Minutes from May 20, 2015 

 
(Item was deferred to August 5th, 2015) 
 

3. Public Comments  
 

A resident addressed the board and expressed concern over alcohol revenue. 
4. Discussion Items  

 
A. Program Update Presentation: Dharma Thinking Institute- Parent Academy 

Program 
a. Program Recap- Exhibit A 

 
(Item was deferred to August 5th, 2015) 

 
B. Program Update Presentation: The United Youth Orchestra of South Florida 

(TUYO) Afterschool Orchestral Program 
a. Presentation- Exhibit B 

 



  

 

Jose Antonio Serrano, representative from the Orchestra addressed the Board and presented a 
recap of the program. 
 

C. Famous Dave’s donation update 
a. Exhibit C 

 
Barbara Hernandez, Parks and Recreation Director, addressed the Board and provided an update. 
 

D. PP4K By-law Revisions 
a. Exhibit D 

 
(Item was deferred to August 5th, 2015) 
 

E. Donation to PP4K from City of Doral Marlins Day 
a. Email and Flyer 

 
(Recess until 5:45 pm) 
Meeting resumed at 5:55 pm. Director Rodriguez is now present. 
 
By consensus, the Board approved the donation to PP4K from the City of Doral Marlins Day. 
 

F. Finance Report 
 

5. Next Meeting Date – August 5, 2015 
 

6. Adjournment - Meeting adjourns at 5:58 pm. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Connie Diaz, City Clerk 
 
Motion to approve the minutes of the June 15, 2015, 2015, Parks and Police 4 Kids Meeting made 
by ___ and seconded by _____. 
 
Director Ana Maria Rodriguez      
Director Pete Cabrera    
Director Christi Fraga    
Vice Chair Sandra Ruiz     
Chair Luigi Boria      
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5 day of August, 2015. 
 

__________________ 
        LUIGI BORIA, CHAIR 



 

 
CITY OF DORAL  

PARKS AND POLICE 4 KIDS FOUNDATION 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

FINAL MINUTES 

 
Tuesday, July 7, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 

8401 NW 53rd Terrace, 3rd Floor Council Chambers 
Doral, FL  33166 

 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call of Foundation Members 
 
Meeting was called to order at 5:35 pm 
 
Chairman Luigi Boria      Attended via phone  
Director Sandra Ruiz     Present 
Director Pete Cabrera     Present 
Director Christi Fraga     Present 
Director Ana Maria Rodriguez   Not Present  
 
Also present were: 
Weiss, Serota Helfman et.al, City Attorney 
Connie Diaz, City Clerk 

 
2. Discussion Item 

 
A. 2015 PP4K Gala at the Trump National Doral Miami  

a. Contract 
Director Ruiz addressed the Board and requested an update from management on the event. 
 
Barbie Hernandez, Parks and Recreation Director, addressed the Board and elaborated on the 
contract.  
 
Motion to request staff to reach out to the Trump Resort for the possibility of cancelling 
without penalty or postponing the PP4K Gala event made by Director Cabrera and seconded 
by Director Ruiz. By consensus, motion passes unanimously. 
 
(Request from Mayor’s Office – Update Back-to-School was added) 
 
Mayor Boria addressed the Board and presented an update on a donation of an iPad received by 
the US Conference of Mayors. By consensus, the Board agreed on the iPad to be raffled at the 
back-to-school event.  
 

3. Adjournment Meeting adjourns at 6:00 pm. 



  

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
_____________________________ 
Connie Diaz, City Clerk 
 
Motion to approve the minutes of the July 7, 2015, Parks and Police 4 Kids Special Meeting made by ___ 
and seconded by _____. 
 
Director Ana Maria Rodriguez      
Director Pete Cabrera     
Director Christi Fraga     
Vice Chair Sandra Ruiz     
Chair Luigi Boria      
 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this 5 day of August, 2015. 
 

__________________ 
        LUIGI BORIA, CHAIR 

 
 

























































7,600.00$                                           

TOTAL CASH REVENUE  $                          800.00 Total Revenue 800.00$               

TOTAL OPERATING BUDGET  $                       5,724.44 

TOTAL Cost Recovery % 13.98% Estimated Attendance 2,000

Description Fee Quantity TOTAL

Divine Savior Cash 1 300.00$               

US Century Bank Cash 1 500.00$               

800.00$               

800.00$            

Account Number  Vendor Description Amount

 Minuteman of Miami Flyer Printing (2,500) 231.40$               

Valsan of Miami, Inc
500 Back packs with School 

Supplies 4,586.04$            

My FAB Events Stiltwalker balloon art (2) 700.00$               

Party4you Balloon Columns (2) 170.00$               

 Minuteman of Miami PP4K Stickers (200)
37.00$                 

5,724.44$            

 2015 PP4K Back to School Night Event

REVENUE

REVENUE TOTAL

EVENT EXPENSES 

EVENT EXPENSES TOTAL

Cash Revenue 

TOTAL CASH REVENUE:

001.115000

*Note: This event was held in partnership with National Night Out Event held by the Police Department. The Police 

Department budget covered the following expenses (Food Samples, Beverages, Inflatables, Face painters, and 

Cotton Candy)

*This report does not include staff cost

Budget Overview

APPROVED EVENT BUDGET

Note: represents Back to School portion of event- does not include Police Department expenses































 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                       

 

 August 5, 2015 

 

 

Dear US Conference of Mayor’s,   

 
 

 

 

It is with sincere gratitude that Parks & Police 4 Kids Foundation (PP4K) accepts the kind 

donation of the IPad that was given to the City of Doral Mayor, Luigi Boria, when he 

recently attended the US Conference of Mayors Conference. Parks & Police 4 Kids is a 

501 (c) (3) not-for-profit corporation organized to provide child welfare and family 

services to the community. PP4K works closely with the City of Doral Mayor, City 

Council, Police Department and Parks & Recreation Department to coordinate events 
and programs throughout the year geared towards achieving this important goal.  

The board approved to have this IPad raffled off to a Doral resident that attended our 

annual Back to School Night event, hosted by Parks & Police 4 Kids Foundation. The 

Back to School Night event took place on Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at Downtown Doral 

Park.  Over 2,000 people attended the event, where 500 backpacks filled with school 

supplies were given away. In addition to the backpack giveaway, attendees were able to 

learn safety techniques from the Police Department and gather information from local 

businesses, organizations and schools on after school activities offered in the community 

to prepare them as they head back to school!  Being able to raffle off this IPad will help 

that lucky child chosen to enhance their educational experience as they prepare for the 

upcoming school year.  

 

Again, we greatly appreciate this donation and the opportunity to enhance a child’s 

educational experience with the receipt of the IPad.  

  

Respectfully, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parks & Police 4 Kids Foundation Directors  

Board Directors 

 
 

      

Parks & Police 4 Kids 

Foundation 



1

Karina La Rosa (CC)

From: Barbara Hernandez (PR)
Sent: Monday, July 13, 2015 9:21 AM
To: Erin Weislow (PR)
Subject: RE: New tentative date?

May	is	a	little	concerning	for	me	and	all	of	us	due	to	the	park	possibly	opening	during	the	month	of	May	
or	June.	Maybe	we	could	have	hold	off	on	September	or	October.	See	if	we	could	reach	out	to	her	after	
August	5th	to	give	her	a	better	date.	 
	 
Kind Regards,  
  
Barbie Hernandez, CPRP 
Parks and Recreation Director 
  
City of Doral 
8401 NW 53rd Terr 
Doral, FL 33166 
T (305) 593‐6600 
F (305) 593‐6615 
Barbara.Hernandez@cityofdoral.com  
www.cityofdoral.com 
  
“Parks Make Life Better!” 
  

        
  

 

 
  
The City of Doral is on Twitter and Facebook! 
  
	 
From: Erin Weislow (PR)  
Sent: Friday, July 10, 2015 9:53 AM 



2

To: Barbara Hernandez (PR) 
Subject: FW: New tentative date? 
  
Hi Barbie,  
  
Please see below regarding available dates for May, September 2016 and October 2016 at Trump National Doral for the 
PP4K Gala. Please advise.  
  
Kind Regards,  
  
Erin Weislow 
Recreation Administrator 
  
City of Doral 
8401 NW 53rd Terrace 
Doral, FL 33166 
T (305) 593-6600 
F (305) 593-6615 
Erin.Weislow@cityofdoral.com  
www.cityofdoral.com 
  

 

 
  
The City of Doral is on Twitter and Facebook! 
  
If you would like to be removed from this mailing list please reply to this email with the word “UNSUBSCRIBE” in the 
subject line. 
  
  
  
From: Rebecca Graves [mailto:rgraves@trumphotels.com]  
Sent: Friday, July 10, 2015 9:42 AM 
To: Erin Weislow (PR) 
Subject: Re: New tentative date? 
  
HI Erin, 
  



3

Mostly all Saturdays are looking good in May, September and October of next year. We are still pretty far out 
for the September and October months and I can tell you October will be a little bit harder to get and a Saturday 
in September should be easier. What I would do is come back with 4-5 dates that would work well for you and 
then I will talk the dates over with my team and we will let you know which works best with the hotel. 
  
Let me know as soon as you are able! 
  
Thanks, 
 
Rebecca 
 
 
REBECCA GRAVES 
Catering Manager 
rgraves@trumphotels.com 
p. 305.717.6368 | f. 305.591.6688 | m. 786.348.9107 
 
TRUMP NATIONAL DORAL MIAMI 
4400 NW 87th Avenue | Miami, FL | 33178 
trumphotelcollection.com/miami/ | facebook.com/TrumpDoral | twitter.com/TrumpDoral 
 
NEW YORK: CENTRAL PARK + SOHO  CHICAGO  LAS VEGAS  WAIKIKI  PANAMA  TORONTO  MIAMI | DORAL  IRELAND | 
DOONBEG 
Coming Soon VANCOUVER  WASHINGTON D.C.  RIO DE JANEIRO  BAKU  
 

Right-click 
download 
help protec
Outlo ok pr
auto matic d
this pictu re
In ternet.

 
  
  
  
On Wed, Jul 8, 2015 at 5:22 PM, Erin Weislow (PR) <Erin.Weislow@cityofdoral.com> wrote: 
Hi Rebecca, 
  
Thank you for checking in on the status. In addition to the dated you gave me yesterday, can you please provide me any 
available dates for May, September 2016, October 2016?  Trying to provide as much information as possible and cover 
all angles.  
  
Thank you! 
  
Erin Weislow 
Recreation Administrator 
  
City of Doral 
8401 NW 53rd Terrace 
Doral, FL 33166 
T (305) 593-6600 
F (305) 593-6615 
Erin.Weislow@cityofdoral.com  
www.cityofdoral.com 
  



4

 
  
The City of Doral is on Twitter and Facebook! 
  
If you would like to be removed from this mailing list please reply to this email with the word “UNSUBSCRIBE” in the 
subject line. 
  
  
  
From: Rebecca Graves [mailto:rgraves@trumphotels.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, July 08, 2015 4:50 PM 
To: Erin Weislow (PR) 
Subject: New tentative date? 
  
Hi Erin! 
  
Just wanted to check in and see what date the board discussed? 
 
Thanks! 
 
 
REBECCA GRAVES 
Catering Manager 
rgraves@trumphotels.com 
p. 305.717.6368 | f. 305.591.6688 | m. 786.348.9107 
 
TRUMP NATIONAL DORAL MIAMI 
4400 NW 87th Avenue | Miami, FL | 33178 
trumphotelcollection.com/miami/ | facebook.com/TrumpDoral | twitter.com/TrumpDoral 
 
NEW YORK: CENTRAL PARK + SOHO  CHICAGO  LAS VEGAS  WAIKIKI  PANAMA  TORONTO  MIAMI | DORAL  IRELAND | 
DOONBEG 
Coming Soon VANCOUVER  WASHINGTON D.C.  RIO DE JANEIRO  BAKU  
 

Right-click here to 
download pictures.  To  
help protect you r priv acy, 
Outlo ok prevented 
auto matic downlo ad o f 
this pictu re from the  
In ternet.

 
  
  
  

 
***Please note that the State of Florida's Public Records Laws provide that most written communications to or from the City of Doral regarding government 
business are public records available to the public upon request. This e-mail communication may therefore be subject to public disclosure.*** 
  
  

 
***Please note that the State of Florida's Public Records Laws provide that most written communications to or from the City of Doral regarding government 
business are public records available to the public upon request. This e-mail communication may therefore be subject to public disclosure.*** 
 



 

 

 

PARKS & POLICE 4 KIDS, INC. 

BYLAWS 

 

PREAMBLE 

 

These Bylaws are subject to, and governed by, the Doral City Council. In the event of a direct conflict 

between the provisions of these Bylaws, the Doral City Council will be controlling. In the event of a 

direct conflict between the provisions of these Bylaws and the Articles of Corporation of Parks & Police 4 

Kids, Inc., these Bylaws will be controlling.   

 

ARTICLE I 

NAME AND PURPOSES 

 

SECTION 1.  NAME.   The name of the corporation i s Parks & Police 4 Kids, Inc. (the 

"Corporation"). 

 

SECTION 2.  PURPOSES.  The Corporation  is organized to provide  child welfare and family 

services  consistent with the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation and  to engage  in any  

other   activities  incidental   to  the  foregoing  purposes  for  which   a  corporation  may  be 

organized   under   the  Florida   Not-For-Profit  Corporation   Act;  provided,  however,   that   

the Corporation   shall   be   organized   and   operated  exclusively   for   charitable,   scientific,  

and educational  purposes within  the meaning  of Section  50l(c)(3) of  the Internal  Revenue  

Code  of 1 986, as amended.  The Foundation does not function as a policy-making or 

policy advisory board for the Miami-Dade Parks, Recreation and Open Spaces 

Department. 

 

SECTION 3.    DISSOLUTION.   Upon  dissolution  of  the  Corporation,  the  Board  of 

Directors  after paying or making adequate provision for the payment  of all of the liabilities of 

the Corporation  shall  distribute  any  remaining  assets  to  the  Ci ty  of  Doral,   a  Florida   

Municipal Corporation  (the "City").  However,  if the City  is not then in existence or no longer 

a qualified distributee, or unwilling to or unable to accept the distribution, then the assets of the 

Corporation shall be distributed to a fund, foundation, or corporation organized  and operated 

exclusively for the  pw-poses  specified   in  section 50 l (c)(3) of  the  Internal  Revenue  Code (or 

corresponding section of any future federal tax code). 

 

SECTION 4. REGISTERED AGENT. The City Manager of the City of Doral shall be 

the registered agent for the Corporation. 

 

ARTICLE II 

MEMBERS 

The Corporation shall have no members. 

 

 

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Commented [BH(1]: Added  

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



 

 

ARTICLE III 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

 

SECTION 1.   GENERAL POWERS.   Except as set forth herein, the affairs of the Corporation 

shall be managed by or under the direction of its Board of Directors (hereinafter, the "Board"). The 

Board shall elect its own officers and adopt rules of procedure. 

 

 

SECTION 2.  NUMBER, TENURE AND QUALIFICATIONS AND DUTIES.  The Board shall 

consist of seven five (57) Directors. Each of the Doral City Council members will appoint one (1) 

resident to serve on the board.  Each Director shall serve the number of terms consistent with the 

term of the Doral City Council member who appointed them. The sixth (6th) member will be 

recommended by the City Council and will be approved by a 3/5 vote. The sixth (6th) member will 

serve a 2 year term. The seventh (7th) member will alternate each year between the Parks and 

Recreation Director (or designee) and the Chief of Police (or designee) iIf needed.  The Board shall 

consist of not less than one (1) or more than five (5) persons.  Each Director shall serve for a term of 

one (1) year.  Pursuant to Section 2.02(iv) of the City Charter, the Mayor of the City of Doral shall 

appoint all members of the Board subject to the approval of the City Council. The initial Board 

shall consist of Alberto J. Ruiz, Ana M. Rodriguez, J.R. Steinbauer, Bibiana Salmon, and Clemente 

Vera, whose terms shall expire on December 31, 2009. 

 

SECTION 3.  RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL. A Director may resign at any time by notifying 

their appointee and providing notice to the Secretary in writing. The Secretary will then provide the 

letter of resignation to the City Clerk’s office, which will then officially notify the Doral City Council.  

A Director may be removed by a 4/5 vote of the Board after determining that the Director is not 

contributing positively to the mission of the Corporation or by a majority vote of the City Council. 

Any Director who, without being excused by the Board President, misses three (3) consecutive meetings 

shall be deemed to have resigned. 

 

SECTION 4.  REMOVAL. A Director can only be removed if it is determined that the Board as a 

majority that the Director is not contributing positively to the mission. The removal can then be executed 

if the Chair or Vice-Chair brings the request in front of the City Council and is approved by a majority 

vote.by the elected official that appointed them to the board. Any Director who misses three (3) 

consecutive meetings, without being excused by the Chair, shall be deemed to have resigned. 

 

SECTION 5. VACANCIES. Vacancies on the Board will be filled in the following manner. Each of the 

five (5) Directors appointed by a member of the Doral City Council, will be filled through the same 

process they are appointed. If the sixth (6th) Director of the Board that was approved by a 3/5 vote by the 

Doral City Council, the Doral City Council will then re-elect a new member. The seventh (7th) member 

will be determined by the alternating year and the current Recreation Director (or designee) and the 

Chief of Police (or designee) iIf needed.   

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Commented [BH(2]: If needed. Alternating might be an issue 
with consistency.  

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Centered



ARTICLE IV 

MEETINGS 

 

SECTION 1 . REGULAR MEETINGS. The annual meeting shall be held during the fall at which 

time Directors and Officers up for election shall be elected.   Elected terms will correspond to the 

calendar year. Meetings of the Board shall be held at least quarterly. Meetings of the Board shall be 

held monthly, with the expectation of December and July. An annual meeting, for purposes of officer 

elections, will take place each January.  

 

SECTION 25. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the City 

Clerk’s office at the request of any of the Directors, with 5/73/5 or more Directors agreeing to attend  

Secretary at the request of the President or Directors constituting 3/5 or more of the Board members. 

 

SECTION 36.  NOTICE.  Notice of the annual meeting and any regular meeting of the Board and 

any committee thereof, shall be given at least five (5) days previous thereto by written notice delivered 

to each Director at his or her physical or email address as shown on the records of the Corporation.  

Special meetings may be called upon at least twenty-four (24) hours notice delivered by telephone, 

confirmed facsimile, confirmed email, hand delivery or overnight delivery by an overnight courier 

service with a reputable delivery tracking system. 

 

SECTION 47.  QUORUM.  53/75 3/5 of the Directors must be present in person in order to 

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board.  If less than a 

quorum is present the meeting may adjourn without further notice. 

 

SECTION  58.   ELECTRONIC  PARTICIPATION. The Board, or any committee thereof, may 

participate in and act at any meeting through the use of a conference telephone or other 

communications equipment, including computers, by means of which all persons participating in the 

meeting can communicate with each other.   Participation in such meeting shall constitute attendance at 

the meeting and but shall not be counted as part of the quorum. 

 

SECTION 6.  VOTING. Each member of the Board shall be entitled to one (1) vote on each matter 

submitted to a vote. A member must be present in person to vote.  

 

SECTION 769. MANNER OF ACTING. The act of a majority of the Directors present at a 

meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board, unless the act of a greater number is 

required by statute or these Bylaws. No Director may act by proxy on any matter. 

 

SECTION 98. MEETING MINUTES. The Secretary of the Board is responsible for preparing minutes 

of the meeting, which shall be delivered to the Directors at the following meeting for approval. If 

changes to the minutes are requested by a Board Member for accuracy, the minutes must be revised and 

approved at the following meeting. Once approved by the Board, a copy of the minutes must be given to 

the City Clerk’s Office for record purposes one week after the meeting. 

SECTION 11.   COMPENSATION.  The elected Directors shall not receive any 

 

ARTICLE IV 

OFFICERS 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Commented [BH(3]: No need for this.  

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold



 

SECTION 1.  OFFICERS.  The Officers of the Corporation shall be a President, Vice President, 

Secretary, Treasurer and such other officers as may be elected or appointed by the Board from 

among the members of the Board.   Officers whose authority and duties are not prescribed in these 

Bylaws shall have the authority and perform the duties prescribed by the Board. 

 
SECTION 2.    ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE.   The Officers of the Corporation shall be 

elected at the Annual Meeting of the Board. Terms of office will correspond to the calendar year.  All 

elected Officers shall hold office for a period of one year unless they resign or are removed by the 

Board earlier. 

 

SECTION 3.   RESIGNATION AND REMOVAL OF OFFICERS.    Any Officer elected or 

appointed by the Board may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of 

the Corporation would be served thereby.  Any Officer may resign at any time upon written notice to 

the ChairBoard President. 

 

SECTION 4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTORCHAIR. The Executive DirectorChair, if one is appointed 
by the Board, shall report to the Corporation Board and be responsible for the day to day 
operations of the Corporation and implementing the directives established by the Board. The 

PresidentChair shall also serve as an ex-officio member of each standing committee that may be 
created. 

 

SECTION 5.   PRESIDENT OF THE  BOARDVICE-CHAIR.   The President Vice-Chair of 

the Board shall preside at all regular and special meetings of the Board. The President Vice-Chair 

shall perform such other duties as are required by the Board.  The President shall also serve as an ex-

officio member of each standing committee that may be created. 

 

SECTION 6. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall record the minutes of the meetings of the Board; 

see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by 

law; be custodian of the corporate records; and perform all duties incident to the office of secretary. 

SECTION  7. TREASURER.   The Treasurer shall be responsible for monitoring the financial 

reports of the Corporation and making sure that corporate limits are maintained.  The Treasurer shall 

report at every regular meeting of the Board on the Corporation's financial status. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

CONTRACTS, CHECKS, DEPOSITS, AND GIFTS/GRANTS AND COMPENSATION 

 

SECTION  1.  CONTRACTS.  The Board may authorize, through a majority vote, any officer or 

agent of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name 

of and on  behalf of  the  Corporation, and  such  authority may be  general  or  confined  to  specific 

instances. All contracts must be aligned to the Corporations mission and disciplines set by the Doral 

City Council.  

 
SECTION  2.   CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.   All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of 

must have a majority vote. Once the majority vote is received, the a copy of the minutes and additional 
back-up shall be sent to the City of Doral Finance Department by the Chair or Vice-Chair for the check 

to be cut.  

 

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"



SECTION 3. DEPOSITS.  All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the 

Department to be deposited in to the Parks & Police 4 Kids, Corp. account.  

 

SECTION  4.   GIFTS/GRANTS.    The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any 

contribution, gift, bequest or devise for the general purposes or for any special purpose of the 

Corporation. Any monetary gifts will only be accepted in the form of a check. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

INDEMNIFICATION 

 

The Foundation hereby indemnifies any and all of its Directors and Officers, and former Directors and 

Officers, against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by them or any one or group of them in 

connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which they or any of them are made 

parties, or a party, by reason of being or having been Directors, Trustee or Officers of the Foundation 

except in relation to matters as to which such Director or Officer, or former Director or Officer shall be 

adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence, willful misconduct or breach 

of his or her fiduciary duty to the Foundation or its members in the performance of his/her or their 

responsibilities, and to such matters as shall be settled by agreement predicated on the existence of such 

liability.  

 

The Foundation shall provide Directors and Officers liability insurance to the Board of Directors and 

Officers of the Foundation insuring them against claims and/or loses including, but not limited to, 

attorneys’ fees as a result of legal action brought for alleged wrongful acts in their capacity as Directors 

and Officers. The amount of the policy shall be no less than one million dollars ($1,000,000). 

 

ARTICLE VIIIX 

LIMITATION ON EXPENDITURES  

 

In no event shall the Directors or Officers of the Foundation make any expenditures or engage in any 

activity inconsistent with the corporation’s status as a corporation exempt from federal income taxation 

under 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or as a corporation, contributions to 

which are deductible under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 

 

ARTICLE IXXI 

CODE OF ETHICS 
 

SECTION 1.  CODE OF ETHICS. It is imperative to the success of the Foundation to be fully 

informed and have responsive and reasonable officers and members of the Board of Directors. To 

accomplish this, the officers and members of the Board shall conduct themselves at all times in the 

best interest of the Foundation. In this regard, each officer and Board member shall abide by the 

following “Code of Ethics”.  

 

SECTION 2. PROCEDURES.  

  Officers and Board members shall put forth their best effort to attend all meetings and 

constructively participate in the same.  

 ∙ Officers and Board members shall exercise good judgment in the control and use of 

confidential information that may from time to time come into their possession.  

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Right: 
0"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at:  0.29" +
Indent at:  0.54"



 ∙ No officer or director shall use confidential information gained by reason of being an 

or member of the Board of Directors for personal gain to the detriment of the Foundation.  

 ∙ Each officer and Board member shall serve as a public relations agent for the Foundation 

and shall work diligently and properly to promote its goals and objectives while keeping 

abreast with its overall progress, plans and programs.  

 ∙ The Foundation will make no loans to any of its officers or Board members.  

 ∙ Members of the immediate family of an officer or Board member shall not serve as a paid 

employee of the Foundation.  

 

ARTICLE XII 

Conflicts of Interest 
 

The purpose of the Conflicts of Interest policy is to protect the Foundation’s interest when it is 

contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an 

officer or director of the Foundation, or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This 

policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing 

conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.  

 

SECTION 1. Definitions  
a. Interested person—any director, officer or member of a committee with governing Board 

delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an 

interested person.  

b. Financial interest—a person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, 

through business, investment or family:  

i. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Foundation has a 

transaction or arrangement;  

ii. A compensation arrangement with the Foundation or with any entity or individual 

with which the Foundation has a transaction arrangement; or  

iii. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement 

with, any entity or individual with which the Foundation is negotiating a transaction 

or arrangement.  

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not 

insubstantial.  

A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. Under definitions, a person who 

has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the Board of directors or 

committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.  

 

SECTION 2. Procedures  
a. Duty to Disclose: In connection with any actual or possible Conflicts of Interest, an 

interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the 

opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of the committees with 

governing Board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.  

b. Determining whether a conflict of interest exists: After disclosure of the financial interest 

and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave 

the Board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict is discussed and voted 

upon. The remaining Board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.  

 

SECTION 3. Procedures for addressing the Conflicts of Interest  

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Justified, No page break before

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman



a. An interested person may make a presentation at the Board or committee meeting, but after 

the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of and the vote on the 

transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.  

 

b. The Board president or committee chair shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person 

or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.  

 

c. After exercising due diligence, the Board of the Foundation or the committee shall 

determine whether the Foundation can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous 

transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to conflict of 

interest.  

 

d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under 

circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the Board or committee shall  
determine by a majority of vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or 

arrangement is in the Foundation’s best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and 

reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to 

whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.  

 

SECTION 4. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy  
a. If the Board of Directors or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed 

to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for 

such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.  

 

b. If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further investigation as warranted 

by the circumstances, the Board of directors or committee determines the member has failed 

to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 

corrective action.  

 

SECTION 5. Records of Proceedings  
a. The minutes of the Board and all committees with Board delegated powers shall contain:  

 

i. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a 

financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the 

nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of 

interest was present and the Board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a conflict 

of interest in fact existed.  

 

ii. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to 

the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any 

alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes 

taken in connection with the proceedings. These minutes will be kept with the 

minutes of the meetings held in that fiscal year for a period of three (3) years.  

 

All Board members and officers shall sign that they have read and understand the Code of Ethics and 

the Conflicts of Interest statement at the Foundation’s annual meeting. They shall receive copies of 

both for personal files at the Board’s annual meeting.  

 

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", No page break before

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Justified, Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Justified



ARTICLE XIII 

NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY 

 

The Foundation follows an equal opportunity policy and selects Board Members without regard to 

race, creed, color, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, age, physical ability, 

veteran status, military obligations and marital status. This policy applies to Board Members, 

Foundation employees, outside vendors, Members, sponsors, consultants and dealings with citizens 

of City of Doral. 

 

ARTICLE XIIX  

Miscellaneous 

 

SECTION1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Foundation shall commence on the first day of 

January and conclude on the last day of December.  

 

SECTION 2. Compensation. No member of the Board of Directors shall receive a salary or any 

other compensation whatsoever from the Foundation, but shall be entitled to reimbursement for all 

expenses reasonably incurred in performing any duties pursuant to these By-Laws.  

 

SECTION 3. Conflict between By-Laws and Articles of Incorporation . 
 

SECTION 4. Interpretation of By-Laws. The Board of Directors shall have the corporate power to 

generally do everything permitted by not-for-profit corporations by law, statute, its Articles of 

Incorporation and these By-Laws, and to determine the interpretation or construction of these By-

Laws, or any parts thereof, which may be in conflict or of doubtful meaning and their decision, shall 

be final and conclusive.  

 

SECTION 5. Attorney’s Fees In the event of any litigation or other form of dispute resolution 

between the Foundation and any of its members, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all 

of its costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs in all courts, from the non-

prevailing party.  

 

SECTION 6. Registered Agent The Registered Agent of the initial corporation for purposes of 

service of legal process is the City of Doral City Attorney.  

 

SECTION 511.   COMPENSATION.  The elected Directors shall not receive any 
AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS  

 

The Board may propose and adopt amendments to these Bylaws. If the board wishes to propose 

amendments to these Bylaws, it must be approved by the Doral City Council and passed by a 3/5 vote.  

 

 

 

I do hereby certify that the above stated Bylaws of PARKS & POLICE 4 KIDS, INC. were approved 

by the PARKS & POLICE 4 KIDS, INC. board of directors on this ____day of ________________ 

2015.  

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0", Right:  0"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Not Bold

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Justified

Formatted: Centered

Formatted: Justified, Right:  0"

Formatted: Justified



CHAIRMAN: 

 

________________________________ 

Chairman Luigi Boria  

 

 
 

 

 

Formatted: Right, Right:  0"


	2015-08-11 PP4K Agenda
	2015-05-20 PP4K - DRAFT MINUTES
	2015-06-15 PP4K - DRAFT MINUTES
	2015-07-07 PP4K - DRAFT MINUTES
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D 2015 PP4K Budget Report (For Board Members)
	Exhibit E Back to School Night Event Recap
	Exhibit F Letter of acceptance- IPad (US Conference of Mayors)
	Exhibit G Email
	Exhibit H PP4K BYLAWS - revised-board comments-parks 6-10-15

